
Standards Committee

Date: Monday, 16th April, 2018
Time: 5.00 pm
Venue: Council Chamber - Council Offices, London Road, Saffron Walden, 

CB11 4ER

Chairman: Councillor D Jones
Members: Councillors K Artus (Vice-Chair), H Asker, A Dean, N Hargreaves, 

T Knight, P Lees, J Loughlin and G Sell

Other Attendees: Mrs G Butcher-Doulton, Mr D Pearl and Mrs C 
Wellingbrook-Doswell (Independent Persons)

AGENDA
PART 1

Open to Public and Press

1 Apologies for Absence and Declarations of Interest

To receive any apologies for absence and declarations of interest.

2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 5 - 10

To consider the minutes of the previous meeting held on 6 
November 2017.

3 Standards in Public Life: Report on Intimidation in Public Life 11 - 26

To receive the Committee on Standards in Public Life report on 
Intimidation in Public Life. 

4 Review of Local Government Ethical Standards: Stakeholder 
Consultation

27 - 34

To consider the Review of Local Government Ethical Standards: 
Stakeholder Consultation report.  

Public Document Pack



5 Update on the adoption of the Council's Code of Conduct by 
town and parish councils

To receive an update on the adoption of the Council's Code of 
Conduct by town and parish councils (Verbal).

6 Standards Work Programme 2018 - 19

To discuss potential items for the Standards committee Work 
Programme for 2018 – 2019 (Verbal).



MEETINGS AND THE PUBLIC

Members of the public are welcome to attend any of the Council’s Cabinet or 
Committee meetings and listen to the debate.  All agendas, reports and minutes can 
be viewed on the Council’s website www.uttlesford.gov.uk. For background papers in 
relation to this meeting please contact committee@uttlesford.gov.uk or phone 01799 
510548/369.

Members of the public and representatives of parish and town councils are permitted 
to speak or ask questions at any of these meetings.  You will need to register with 
the Democratic Services Officer by midday two working days before the meeting.

The agenda is split into two parts.  Most of the business is dealt with in Part I which 
is open to the public.  Part II includes items which may be discussed in the absence 
of the press or public, as they deal with information which is personal or sensitive for 
some other reason.  You will be asked to leave the meeting before Part II items are 
discussed.

Agenda and Minutes are available in alternative formats and/or languages.  For more 
information please call 01799 510510.

Facilities for people with disabilities 
The Council Offices has facilities for wheelchair users, including lifts and toilets.  The 
Council Chamber has an induction loop so that those who have hearing difficulties 
can hear the debate.

If you are deaf or have impaired hearing and would like a signer available at a 
meeting, please contact committee@uttlesford.gov.uk or phone 01799 510548/369 
as soon as possible prior to the meeting.

Fire/emergency evacuation procedure 
If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave 
the building by the nearest designated fire exit.  You will be directed to the nearest 
exit by a designated officer.  It is vital you follow their instructions.

For information about this meeting please contact Democratic Services
Telephone: 01799 510369 or 510548 
Email: Committee@uttlesford.gov.uk

General Enquiries
Council Offices, London Road, Saffron Walden, CB11 4ER

Telephone: 01799 510510
Fax: 01799 510550

Email: uconnect@uttlesford.gov.uk
Website: www.uttlesford.gov.uk

http://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/
mailto:committee@uttlesford.gov.uk
mailto:committee@uttlesford.gov.uk
mailto:Committee@uttlesford.gov.uk
mailto:uconnect@uttlesford.gov.uk
http://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



STANDARDS COMMITTEE held at COUNCIL OFFICES LONDON ROAD 
SAFFRON WALDEN at 4pm on 6 NOVEMBER 2017 

Present: Councillor K Artus – Chairman 
Councillors H Asker, A Dean, P Lees and G Sell

Mr D Pearl and Mrs C Wellingbrook–Doswell (Independent 
Persons).  

Officers in
attendance: B Ferguson (Democratic Services Officer)
                    and S Pugh (Interim Head of Legal Services).

SC10 APOLOGIES AND DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Jones, Knight, Light, 
Loughlin and Mrs Butcher. In Councillor Knight’s absence, the Vice-Chair, 
Councillor Artus, chaired the meeting.  

SC11 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS

The minutes of the meeting held on 20 March 2017 were agreed as a correct 
record and signed by the Chairman.

SC12 DCLG CONSULTATION: UPDATING DISQUALIFICATION CRITERIA FOR 
LOCAL AUTHORITY MEMBERS

The Interim Head of Legal Services presented his report on the Department 
of Communities and Local Government (DCLG) consultation paper setting 
out the government’s proposals for updating the criteria disqualifying 
individuals from standing for, or holding office as, a local authority member, 
directly-elected mayor or member of the London Assembly. Members were 
asked to put forward their views so a response to the consultation could be 
drafted. 

The current criteria prevented individuals from standing for, or holding office 
as a councillor if they had received a sentence of imprisonment, suspended 
or not, for a period of no less than three months. The consultation issued by 
the DCLG sought views on extending these criteria for disqualification, with 
particular regard to sexual offences and anti-social behaviour.

SEXUAL OFFENCES

In relation to sexual offences, the consultation asked the following questions:

Q1. Do you agree that an individual who is subject to the notification
requirements set out in the Sexual Offences Act 2003 (i.e. who is on the

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



sex offenders register) should be prohibited from standing for election,
or holding office, as a member of a local authority, mayor of a 
combined authority, member of the London Assembly or London 
Mayor?

Q2. Do you agree that an individual who is subject to a Sexual Risk
Order should not be prohibited from standing for election, or holding
office, as a member of a local authority, mayor of a combined authority,
member of the London Assembly or London Mayor?

The consultation proposed that anyone who was currently subject to sex 
offender notification requirements (otherwise known as on the ‘sex offenders 
register’) should be barred from standing for election, or holding office, as a 
councillor. However, the consultation did not propose extending 
disqualification to those subject to a Sexual Risk Order (SRO). 

The Interim Head of Legal Services said there was an important distinction 
to be made between a sexual offence under the Sexual Offences Acts 2003 
and a Sexual Risk Order (SRO). An individual charged with a sexual offence 
under the Sexual Offences Act 2003 would have been tried and found guilty 
of a criminal offence, whilst an SRO was a civil order against someone who 
was perceived as a threat to public safety, but was not dependent on a 
conviction. 

Councillor Asker said public safety was paramount and suggested a similar 
approach to Licensing standards should be adopted. When drivers apply for 
a commercial license, checks are carried out to ensure they are not a risk to 
the public. The same should apply to those standing for elected office; if they 
are in receipt of an SRO they are a risk and therefore not fit to be a 
councillor.

Councillor Lees said an individual who had been given an SRO had not been 
convicted and therefore would be disbarred from standing for office on a 
suspicion. Councillor Dean agreed and said this should not be grounds for 
disqualification. 

The Chairman said individuals with an SRO had been considered a risk for 
good reason and should not be allowed to stand for elected office. 
Councillors Asker and Sell agreed. The majority of members felt that 
individuals who been subject to an SRO should be disqualified from standing 
for office. 

The Committee resolved that the Interim Head of Legal Services should draft 
a response agreeing with Question 1 but (by a majority) disagreeing with 
Question 2 of the consultation.  

ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR

Page 6



Concerning the anti-social behaviour orders, the consultation asked the 
following questions:

Q3. Do you agree that an individual who has been issued with a Civil
Injunction (made under section 1 of the Anti-social Behaviour, Crime
and Policing Act 2014) or a Criminal Behaviour Order (made under
section 22 of the Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014)
should be prohibited from standing for election, or holding office, as
a member of a local authority, mayor of a combined authority,
member of the London Assembly or London Mayor?

Q4. Do you agree that being subject to a Civil Injunction or a Criminal
Behaviour Order should be the only anti-social behaviour-related
reasons why an individual should be prohibited from standing for
election, or holding office, as a member of a local authority, mayor of
a combined authority, member of the London Assembly or London
Mayor?

The Interim Head of Legal said there were two behaviour sanctions the 
consultation was seeking views on, a Civil Injunction and a Criminal 
Behaviour Order (CBO). He asked members to consider if such sanctions 
warranted inclusion in the disqualification criteria. He also advised members 
to think about the difference between the two types of order, particularly the 
different standards of proof that applied in obtaining these sanctions. 

In response to a question from Councillor Sell, the Interim Head of Legal 
Services said CBOs were usually issued to individuals who caused a public 
nuisance, such as street drinkers. Councillor Sell said if CBOs were enforced 
on frequent offenders, such a sanction demonstrated that an individual was 
not a fit and proper person to be standing for elected office. Councillor Dean 
said he was wary of disqualifying individuals on the basis outlined in the 
report as it was interfering with the democratic process; an individual could 
be elected with a democratic mandate only to be disqualified by the 
Standards Committee. He said it was up to the electorate to decide if an 
individual was fit for office.  

Councillor Lees said all individuals were capable of making mistakes and 
often people who were not perfect could connect and relate to the wider 
electorate. She added that there was an important distinction between a 
Criminal Behaviour Order mad following conviction for a criminal offence and 
a civil injunction. She asked the Interim Head of Legal Services if a person, 
under the proposed changes outlined in the consultation paper, could be 
barred from standing for elected office if they had been sanctioned for 
political campaigning, for example protesting against fracking. The Interim 
Head of Legal Services said that political campaigning which involved anti-
social behaviour could result in a Civil Injunction or a Criminal Behaviour 
Order. Councillor Sell said pressure groups had taken direct action 
throughout history to enact change and, whilst not always acting within the 
strict confines of the law, these individuals could foreseeably be fit and 

Page 7



proper people, as well as potentially effective representatives. He added that 
it was different if violence was involved. 

Members agreed that the measures outlined in the consultation regarding 
anti-social behaviour were too crude. A consensus was reached that 
individuals should be prevented from standing for election if they had 
received a CBO, but a distinction had to be made between a CBO and a civil 
injunction order. Representations to the DCLG would be drafted along these 
lines. 

ADDITIONAL QUESTIONS

In addition to the questions on sexual offences and anti-social behaviour, the 
consultation asked:

Q5. Do you consider that the proposals set out in this consultation 
paper will have an effect on local authorities discharging their Public 
Sector Equality Duties under the Equality Act 2010?

Q6. Do you have any further views about the proposals set out in this
consultation paper?

Councillor Dean said that Westminster had more lenient disqualification 
criteria than those for politicians involved in local government. He said that 
standards should be consistent across the country, regardless of the tier of 
government. Following this consultation, he expected the new 
disqualification criteria to be applied to Parliament and asked for this point to 
be included in the response to Question 6.  

The Chairman said a suitable response to Question 6 would be to mention 
the concern shared by the committee of the lack of sanctions available when 
councillors breached the code of conduct. The Interim Head of Legal 
Services said he would include this in his draft response. 

RESOLVED the Interim Head of Legal Service to draft a 
response to the consultation and circulate to members for 
comment.  

SC12 STRENGTHENING SANCTIONS AVAILABLE TO THE STANDARDS 
COMMITTEE

The Interim Head of Legal Services presented a verbal report to members 
on the strengthening of sanctions available to the Standards Committee. He 
said the Committee on Standards in Public Life would be considering ethical 
standards in local in 2018 and members could write to the Committee urging 
it to recommend strengthening the sanctions available. 

Mr Pearl said he had found a survey carried out by Lawyers in Local 
Government (LLG) in which 60% of respondents felt that the abolition of the 

Page 8



Standards Board, and the lesser sanctions that could now be applied locally, 
had left them without the necessary tools to deal with breaches of conduct. 
The Chairman agreed and said the lack of sanctions available under the 
current regime had led to problems within a number of parish councils. He 
added that a Code of Conduct was toothless if rules could not be enforced. 

In response to a question from the Chairman, the Interim Head of Legal 
Services said the main difference between the current system and the 
preceding one was the inability to suspend a councillor if the Code of 
Conduct had been breached. He added that it was just as important to 
promote a culture of standards whereby suspension would rarely be 
required. 

The Chairman said there was a need to strengthen the sanctions available to 
the Standards Committee and to consider introducing a “right of recall” in 
respect of local councillors. The Interim Head of Legal Services said he 
would bring a report on this to the next meeting. 

UPDATE ON THE ADOPTION OF THE COUNCIL'S CODE OF CONDUCT 
BY TOWN AND PARISH COUNCILS 

The Interim Head of Legal Services updated members on the uptake of 
Uttlesford District Council’s Code of Conduct by town and parish councils. He 
said progress was being made, and that an item had been included on the 
agenda for the Local Councils’ Liaison Forum (LCLF) which had taken place 
in September. Stebbing Parish council had been the only parish to adopt the 
code and there was a need to promote it to councils across the district. 

The Chairman said the uptake was disappointing and more needed to be 
done to encourage parish councils to adopt the code. Councillor Sell said not 
all parishes sent representatives to the LCLF and it would be a good idea to 
involve UDC members so they could encourage parishes within their ward to 
adopt the new code. 

SC12 FEEDBACK FROM INDEPENDENT PERSONS ABOUT THEIR ROLE

The Interim Head of Legal Services said the Independent Persons who 
assisted the Standards Committee played a very valuable role, although the 
majority of their work was hidden from view. He asked Mr Pearl and Mrs 
Wellingbrook–Doswell to comment on their experience as Independent 
Persons.

Mrs Wellingbrook–Doswell said she had found the role interesting, although 
during her first year in the role the Standards Committee had been inundated 
with complaints. She said this was symptomatic of a wider problem where 
people found it easier to make a complaint rather than deal with local 
problems at source. She said she had been surprised by attitudes towards 
Standards hearings; rather than being seen as a serious and formal process 

Page 9



to be used only as a last resort, it was often perceived as the first step in 
resolving a problem. She said there was a need to provide training to those 
who conducted the hearings as preparation would promote formalising the 
process. She added that the Interim Head of Legal Services had helped in 
dealing with cases in an appropriate way. 

Mr Pearl said he agreed with Mrs Wellingbrook-Doswell, particularly with 
regard to formalising the hearing process. He said the adoption of the Code 
of Conduct hearings procedure would help in making hearings more 
consistent and fair. He said he would like to have stronger sanctions 
available when councillors breached the code; formal training for councillors 
on standards; and the development of a respectful culture where breaches of 
the code were not tolerated. He added that the system adopted in 2011 was 
not ideal and would prefer to see a similar system to the one implemented in 
Wales. 

The Chairman thanked the Independent Persons for their hard work and said 
it would be a positive development if issues could be resolved at local level 
without the need for a formal Standards hearing.  

In response to a question from Councillor Sell, the Interim Head of Legal 
Services said the majority of cases concerned disputes within parish 
councils. He said the majority of issues were concerned with a clash of 
personalities or local disputes. He mentioned an occasion on which Mrs 
Wellingbrook-Doswell had met a complainant and the other parties to try to 
resolve the complaint without resorting to a formal Standards investigation 
and hearing. 

The meeting ended at 5.20pm.

 

Page 10



Committee: Standards

Title: Committee on Standards in Public Life: Report 
on Intimidation in Public Life

Date:
16 April 2018

Author: Monitoring Officer Item for decision

Summary
The Committee on Standards in Public Life has issued a report on “Intimidation in 
Public Life”. The importance that the Committee attaches to its report is evident 
from the first sentence of the executive summary:
“Intimidation in public life presents a threat to the very nature of representative 
democracy in the UK.”
Whilst only one of the recommendations made in the report is addressed 
specifically to local authorities, the report addresses matters that are within the 
remit of the Standards Committee brief to promote ethical behaviour. Members 
are therefore invited to give it their consideration. It also contains 
recommendations to all those in public life. 

Recommendations

1. That the Committee considers the conclusions and recommendations of the 
Committee on Standards in Public Life report on “Intimidation in Public Life”. 

Financial Implications

2. None

Background Papers

3. The full report may be found at 
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/
666927/6.3637_CO_v6_061217_Web3.1__2_.pdf 

Impact 

4.  

Communication/Consultation This report informs members of the report 
on “Intimidation in Public Life”. Further 
circulation of the executive summary to all 
members is a step that should be 
considered. 

Community Safety None

Page 11

Agenda Item 3

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/666927/6.3637_CO_v6_061217_Web3.1__2_.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/666927/6.3637_CO_v6_061217_Web3.1__2_.pdf


Equalities Tackling intimidation in public life will help 
to promote participation by people with 
protected characteristics.

Health and Safety There is a clear link between tackling 
intimidation and promoting health and 
safety. 

Human Rights/Legal 
Implications

In dealing with this issue, it is important to 
be mindful of human rights relating to 
freedom of expression and assembly. 

Sustainability None

Ward-specific impacts None

Workforce/Workplace None

Situation

5. The Committee on Standards in Public Life has issued a report on 
“Intimidation in Public Life”. The appendix to this report sets out the terms of 
reference of the review being carried out by the Committee on Standards in 
Public Life, along with the consultation questions. The full report may be found 
at 
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/
666927/6.3637_CO_v6_061217_Web3.1__2_.pdf

6. The summary is self-explanatory and much further commentary in this report 
is unnecessary. 

7. The only direct recommendation in the report concerns the disclosure of home 
addresses as a “disclosable pecuniary interest”. The relevant part of our Code 
of Conduct states:
Where you have an interest that is registrable and the nature of the interest is 
such that you and The Council’s monitoring officer consider that disclosure of 
details of the interest could lead to you or a person connected with you being 
subject to violence or intimidation if the interest is entered in the authority’s 
register then copies of the register available for inspection and any published 
version of the register shall not include details of the interest but may state that 
you have an interest details of which are withheld under s.32(2) Localism Act 
2011 and/or this paragraph.
This is wider in scope than home addresses and could include, for instance, 
shares held by a councillor. The report recommends Monitoring Officers to 
remind councillors of this provision and this will be done.

8. More widely, the report sets an important context for the work of the Standards 
Committee and for the Council and all councillors. Comments of particular 
relevance include:

Page 12

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/666927/6.3637_CO_v6_061217_Web3.1__2_.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/666927/6.3637_CO_v6_061217_Web3.1__2_.pdf


 Nobody in public life should engage in intimidatory behaviour, nor 
condone or tolerate it.

 Those in public life should seek to uphold high standards of conduct, 
adhering to the Seven Principles of Public Life, and help prevent a 
decline in public trust in political institutions through their own conduct.

 Those in public life must set and protect a tone in public discourse which 
is not dehumanising or derogatory, and which recognises the rights of 
others to participate in public life.

 Those in public life has a responsibility not to use language which 
engenders hatred or hostility towards individuals because of their 
personal characteristics.  

9. These are reflected in the following recommendations made to all those in 
public life:

 Nobody in public life should engage in intimidatory behaviour, nor 
condone or tolerate it. All those in public life have a responsibility to 
challenge and report it wherever it occurs.

 Those in public life should seek to uphold high standards of conduct, 
adhering to the Seven Principles of Public Life, and help prevent a 
decline in public trust in political institutions through their own conduct.

 Those in public life must set and protect a tone in public discourse which 
is not dehumanising or derogatory, and which recognises the rights of 
others to participate in public life.

 Those in public life have a responsibility not to use language which 
engenders hatred or hostility towards individuals because of their 
personal characteristics.

 Those in public life should not engage in highly personalised attacks, nor 
portray policy disagreements or questions of professional competence as 
breaches of ethical standards.

10.  Given the importance of the issue, the author suggests that all members of 
the Council, and parish councils, are made aware of the report and its 
recommendations. 

Risk Analysis

Risk Likelihood Impact Mitigating actions

That members of 
the Council do not 
meet the 
expectations set 
out in the report. 

2 3 Informing all members 
of the Council of the 
report and its 
conclusions. Leading 
by example. 

1 = Little or no risk or impact
2 = Some risk or impact – action may be necessary.
3 = Significant risk or impact – action required
4 = Near certainty of risk occurring, catastrophic effect or failure of project.

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Committee: Standards

Title: Review of Local Government Ethical 
Standards: Stakeholder Consultation

Date:
16 April 2018

Author: Monitoring Officer Item for decision

Summary
The Committee on Standards in Public Life has launched a stakeholder 
consultation as part of a review of local government ethical standards. The 
deadline for submissions is Friday 18 May. Members have raised issues about 
ethical standards previously, especially around the absence of sanctions. This is 
an ideal opportunity for members to put forward their views and advocate any 
change they feel is needed.

Recommendations

1. That the Monitoring Officer is authorised to draft a response, on behalf of the 
Committee and the Council, to the stakeholder consultation by the Committee 
on Standards in Public Life on local government ethical standards.

2. That the Monitoring Officer consults the Chairman of the Standards Committee 
in preparing the response to ensure that it reflects the views of the Committee.  

Financial Implications

3. None

Background Papers

4. None

Impact 

5.  

Communication/Consultation This report seeks to involve Standards 
Committee members in responding to the 
consultation being undertaken by the 
Committee on Standards in Public Life.

Community Safety None

Equalities A sound ethical framework will help to 
promote equalities.

Health and Safety None

Human Rights/Legal It is important that the ethical framework 

Page 27

Agenda Item 4



Implications recognises and respects human rights 
legislation.

Sustainability None

Ward-specific impacts None

Workforce/Workplace None

Situation

6. The Committee on Standards in Public Life has launched a stakeholder 
consultation as part of a review of local government ethical standards. The 
deadline for submissions is Friday 18 May. Members have raised issues about 
ethical standards previously, especially around the absence of sanctions. This 
is an ideal opportunity for members to put forward their views and advocate 
any change they feel is needed.

7. The appendix to this report sets out the terms of reference of the review being 
carried out by the Committee on Standards in Public Life, along with the 
consultation questions. 

8. This is the last meeting of the Standards Committee before the deadline. 
Members are therefore asked to consider the points they would like to make in 
response.

9. A link to the consultation has been sent to all councillors. They have been 
invited to identify any matters that they would like the Standards Committee to 
consider when drawing up its response. 

10.Further work is likely to be needed following the meeting to put the response 
into final form. The recommendation, therefore, is that the Monitoring Officer is 
authorised to prepare a final draft for submission in consultation with the 
Chairman of the Standards Committee. Further consultation with members of 
the Standards Committee may also be needed to ensure that the submission 
reflects members’ views. 

11.An alternative approach would be to set up a small task group to prepare a 
draft response. 

Risk Analysis

12.

Risk Likelihood Impact Mitigating actions

That the views of 
the Council are 
not made clearly 
known to the 
Committee on 
Standards in 

2 2 Consultation with all 
members of the 
Council. Involvement 
of the Standards 
Committee in drawing 
up the consultation 

Page 28



Public Life response. 

1 = Little or no risk or impact
2 = Some risk or impact – action may be necessary.
3 = Significant risk or impact – action required
4 = Near certainty of risk occurring, catastrophic effect or failure of project.

Page 29



Review of Local Government Ethical Standards: Stakeholder Consultation

The Committee on Standards in Public Life is undertaking a review of local government 
ethical standards.

Robust standards arrangements are needed to safeguard local democracy, maintain high 
standards of conduct, and to protect ethical practice in local government.

As part of this review, the Committee is holding a public stakeholder consultation. The 
consultation is open from 12:00 on Monday 29 January 2018 and closes at 17:00 on Friday 
18 May 2018.

Terms of reference

The terms of reference for the review are to:

1. Examine the structures, processes and practices in local government in England for:
a. Maintaining codes of conduct for local councillors;
b. Investigating alleged breaches fairly and with due process;
c. Enforcing codes and imposing sanctions for misconduct;
d. Declaring interests and managing conflicts of interest; and
e. Whistleblowing.

2. Assess whether the existing structures, processes and practices are conducive to 
high standards of conduct in local government;

3. Make any recommendations for how they can be improved; and
4. Note any evidence of intimidation of councillors, and make recommendations for any 

measures that could be put in place to prevent and address such intimidation.

The review will consider all levels of local government in England, including town and parish 
councils, principal authorities, combined authorities (including Metro Mayors) and the Greater 
London Authority (including the Mayor of London).

Local government ethical standards are a devolved issue. The Committee’s remit does not 
enable it to consider ethical standards issues in devolved nations in the UK except with the 
agreement of the relevant devolved administrations. However, we welcome any evidence 
relating to local government ethical standards in the devolved nations of the UK, particularly 
examples of best practice, for comparative purposes.

Submissions will be published online alongside our final report, with any contact information 
(for example, email addresses) removed.

The Committee will publish anonymised submissions (where the name of the respondent and 
any references to named individuals or local authorities are removed) where a respondent 
makes a reasonable request to do so. 

Consultation questions

The Committee invites responses to the following consultation questions.

Page 30



Please note that not all questions will be relevant to all respondents and that submissions do 
not need to respond to every question. Respondents may wish to give evidence about only 
one local authority, several local authorities, or local government in England as a whole.  
Please do let us know whether your evidence is specific to one particular authority or is a 
more general comment on local government in England.

Whilst we understand submissions may be grounded in personal experience, please note 
that the review is not an opportunity to have specific grievances considered.

a. Are the existing structures, processes and practices in place working to ensure high 
standards of conduct by local councillors? If not, please say why.

b. What, if any, are the most significant gaps in the current ethical standards regime for 
local government?

Codes of conduct

c. Are local authority adopted codes of conduct for councillors clear and easily 
understood? Do the codes cover an appropriate range of behaviours? What 
examples of good practice, including induction processes, exist?

d. A local authority has a statutory duty to ensure that its adopted code of conduct for 
councillors is consistent with the Seven Principles of Public Life and that it includes 
appropriate provision (as decided by the local authority) for registering and declaring 
councillors’ interests. Are these requirements appropriate as they stand? If not, 
please say why.

Investigations and decisions on allegations

e. Are allegations of councillor misconduct investigated and decided fairly and with due 
process?

i. What processes do local authorities have in place for investigating and 
deciding upon allegations? Do these processes meet requirements for due 
process? Should any additional safeguards be put in place to ensure due 
process?

ii. Is the current requirement that the views of an Independent Person must be 
sought and taken into account before deciding on an allegation sufficient to 
ensure the objectivity and fairness of the decision process? Should this 
requirement be strengthened? If so, how?

iii. Monitoring Officers are often involved in the process of investigating and 
deciding upon code breaches. Could Monitoring Officers be subject to 
conflicts of interest or undue pressure when doing so? How could Monitoring 
Officers be protected from this risk?

Sanctions

f. Are existing sanctions for councillor misconduct sufficient?

Page 31



i. What sanctions do local authorities use when councillors are found to have 
breached the code of conduct? Are these sanctions sufficient to deter 
breaches and, where relevant, to enforce compliance?

ii. Should local authorities be given the ability to use additional sanctions? If so, 
what should these be?

Declaring interests and conflicts of interest

g. Are existing arrangements to declare councillors’ interests and manage conflicts of 
interest satisfactory? If not please say why.

i. A local councillor is under a legal duty to register any pecuniary interests (or 
those of their spouse or partner), and cannot participate in discussion or 
votes that engage a disclosable pecuniary interest, nor take any further steps 
in relation to that matter, although local authorities can grant dispensations 
under certain circumstances. Are these statutory duties appropriate as they 
stand?

ii. What arrangements do local authorities have in place to declare councillors’ 
interests, and manage conflicts of interest that go beyond the statutory 
requirements? Are these satisfactory? If not, please say why.

Whistleblowing

h. What arrangements are in place for whistleblowing, by the public, councillors, and 
officials? Are these satisfactory?

Improving standards

i. What steps could local authorities take to improve local government ethical standards?
j. What steps could central government take to improve local government ethical 

standards?

Intimidation of local councillors

k. What is the nature, scale, and extent of intimidation towards local councillors?
i. What measures could be put in place to prevent and address this 

intimidation?

Who can respond?

Anyone with an interest may make a submission. The Committee welcomes submissions 
from members of the public. 

However, the consultation is aimed particularly at the following stakeholders, both individually 
and corporately:

● Local authorities and standards committees;
● Local authority members (for example, Parish Councillors, District Councillors);
● Local authority officials (for example, Monitoring Officers);

Page 32



● Independent Persons appointed under section 28(7) of the Localism Act 2011;
● Think tanks with an interest or expertise in local government;
● Academics with interest or expertise in local government; and
● Representative bodies or groups related to local government.

How to make a submission

Submissions can be sent either in electronic format or in hard copy.

Submissions must:
● State clearly who the submission is from, i.e. whether from yourself or sent on behalf 

of an organisation;
● Include a brief introduction about yourself/your organisation and your reason for 

submitting evidence;
● Be in doc, docx, rtf, txt, ooxml or odt format, not PDF;
● Be concise – we recommend no more than 2,000 words in length; and
● Contain a contact email address if you are submitting by email.

 
Submissions should:

● Have numbered paragraphs; and
● Comprise a single document. If there are any annexes or appendices, these should 

be included in the same document.
 
It would be helpful if your submission included any factual information you have to offer from 
which the Committee might be able to draw conclusions, and any recommendations for 
action which you would like the Committee to consider.
 
The Committee may choose not to accept a submission as evidence, or not to publish a 
submission even if it is accepted as evidence. This may occur where a submission is very 
long or contains material which is inappropriate.
 
Submissions sent to the Committee after the deadline of 17:00 on Friday 18 May 2018 may 
not be considered.
 
Submissions can be sent:
1. Via email to: public@public-standards.gov.uk
2. Via post to:

Review of Local Government Ethical Standards
Committee on Standards in Public Life
GC:07
1 Horse Guards Road
London
SW1A 2HQ

 
If you have any questions, please contact the Committee’s Secretariat by email 
(public@public-standards.gov.uk) or phone (0207 271 2948).

Page 33



Page 34


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	3 Standards in Public Life: Report on Intimidation in Public Life
	Intimidation in Public Life Report Summary

	4 Review of Local Government Ethical Standards: Stakeholder Consultation

